

[REDACTED]
[REDACTED]

Date: 20 August 2026
Our Ref: FOI2026-3433
Enquiries to: Freedom of Information
Email: psd.foi@nhs.scot

Dear [REDACTED]

Freedom of Information Reference: FOI2026-3433

Thank you for your information request received on 22 July 2026 by Public Services Delivery Scotland (PSD Scotland).

From 1 April 2026, NHS Education for Scotland (NES) and NHS National Services Scotland (NSS) joined to form Public Services Delivery Scotland (PSD Scotland), enabling transformation in health, social care, and the wider public sector. This means your Freedom of Information request is now being responded to by PSD Scotland.

Your Request

Under the Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act 2002, I am requesting recorded information concerning the uptake of women's health education formerly developed, hosted or administered by NHS Education for Scotland through Turas Learn.

This request relates specifically to:

- *the NES Menstrual Health e-learning module;*
- *any NES e-learning module or learning resource specifically concerning endometriosis; and*
- *any section or unit within the Menstrual Health module specifically concerning endometriosis.*

For each applicable module, resource or unit, please provide the following information covering the period from its launch to 30 June 2026:

1. *Its full title and launch or publication date.*
2. *The aggregate number of unique users recorded as having:*
 - a. *enrolled or registered;*
 - b. *accessed or started it; and*
 - c. *completed it.*

Chair Mr Keith Redpath
Chief Executive Professor Karen Reid

If Turas uses different engagement measures, please provide the closest equivalent figures held and briefly explain the terminology used.

3. *A breakdown of completion numbers by financial year.*
4. *Where available through existing standard reporting fields or reports, completion numbers broken down by:*
 - a. *NHS board or employing organisation; and*
 - b. *profession or staff group, including GPs and other primary-care professionals.*

I am not asking PSD Scotland to manually examine individual user accounts or create a new analysis where these breakdowns are not already reportable.

5. *Copies of the latest existing dashboard, report or management summary showing enrolment, access, uptake or completion data for the relevant resources.*
6. *Copies of any current recorded policy, guidance or instruction stating whether completion of the relevant resources is:*
 - a. *mandatory for any NHS Scotland staff group;*
 - b. *recommended but voluntary; or*
 - c. *determined by individual NHS boards or employing organisations.*
7. *If no endometriosis-specific e-learning module or resource is held, please confirm this.*

I wish to advise under the Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act 2002 (FOISA), that PSD Scotland can provide a partial response to your request, as detailed below.

For each applicable module, resource or unit, please provide the following information covering the period from its launch to 30 June 2026:

1. Its full title and launch or publication date.

The Menstrual Health Module was launched in September 2024. This includes a section on endometriosis.

2. The aggregate number of unique users recorded as having:

a. enrolled or registered;

Under Section 17 of the FOISA this information is not held by PSD Scotland. There is no enrolment or registration for the module, learners can access as required.

b. accessed or started it; and

There are 910 learners listed as 'in progress'. The system does not show which stage of the module the learner has reached. It is possible that some learners may have completed the module but not registered completion.

c. completed it.

A total of 414 learners has completed the module since the launch in September 2024.

If Turas uses different engagement measures, please provide the closest equivalent figures held and briefly explain the terminology used.

3. A breakdown of completion numbers by financial year.

The below table details the completion rates for each financial year, since the launch date of September 2024.

Year	Completion
2024-25	149
2025-26	208
2026-27 (up to 11 August 2026)	57

4. Where available through existing standard reporting fields or reports, completion numbers broken down by:

a. NHS board or employing organisation; and

This information has been provided within table 1 in attached: **FOI2026-3433-Annex A.**

b. profession or staff group, including GPs and other primary-care professionals.

This information has been provided within table 1 in attached: **FOI2026-3433-Annex A.**

I am not asking PSD Scotland to manually examine individual user accounts or create a new analysis where these breakdowns are not already reportable.

5. Copies of the latest existing dashboard, report or management summary showing enrolment, access, uptake or completion data for the relevant resources.

There are no additional dashboards or management summaries. Under Section 17 of the FOISA this information is not held.

All information held regarding uptake and completion data has been provided.

6. Copies of any current recorded policy, guidance or instruction stating whether completion of the relevant resources is:

- a. mandatory for any NHS Scotland staff group;**
- b. recommended but voluntary; or**
- c. determined by individual NHS boards or employing organisations.**

Under Section 17 of the FOISA this information is not held. PSD Scotland does not hold any policy or guidance stating if the module is mandatory, recommended or voluntary or determined by individual NHS boards or other organisations.

The module is intended for use for continuing professional development (CPD). Individual practitioners are responsible for identifying their own professional development requirements/learning needs.

7. If no endometriosis-specific e-learning module or resource is held, please confirm this.

As detailed, endometriosis specific learning is held within the Menstrual Health eLearning module.

If you are dissatisfied with this reply under the terms of the Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act 2002, you should contact us again in writing or by email within 40 days of receipt of this response to request an internal review.

If you remain unhappy with the outcome of that internal review, you have the right to apply directly to the Scottish Information Commissioner for a decision within six months of receiving our response. For further information, please visit the Scottish Information Commissioner's [website](#).

Yours sincerely

A black rectangular redaction box covering the signature area.